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from industrial activity. The unique
character of the neighbourhood is very
much defined by its historic residences and
mature vegetation.
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C unnmgham Residence

Designed by the local architectural firm of
McArravy and Barley, this house is their only
| identified residential building and an
excellent early example of the suburban
rancher style. This architectural style is
characterized by its single storey, “to the

» sl ground” character. Typically, ranchers had
low pitched roofs which emphasized the form’s horizontality, broad
central chimneys without ornamentation, corner windows and large
“picture” windows that were the centerpieces of the main rooms of the
house. The suburban ranch style was the favored design in suburban tract
developments from the late 1940s into the 1970s. For this reason, this
house’s downtown, Old City location is unusual.

Crossan Residence

Built in 1912 by Janet and James William
Crossan, the Crossan Residence is a very good
example of a Craftsman Bungalow. Although
updated, the building still features many of
the hallmarks of this style including long and
low proportions and stained glass windows.
More unusual locally is the decorative
shingling in the front gable. James Crossan was Nanaimo's Chief of Police
from 1894 to 1912, Secretary for the Pilot Board, and an Alderman for the
North Ward.
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Wood esidence

For many years this was the residence of the
Wood family. Sarah Ann Wilcox was
¥ widowed on May 22, 1891, when her husband
0l John, the co-owner of the Commercial Hotel,
died. She later married William A. Wood,
Nanaimo Station Master. The charming Late
Victorian cottage appears to date from
approx:mately 1896. This was the era when stream driven band saws
allowed for the extensive use of scroll-cut carpenter ornamentation, of
which this house is a splendid example.

Wilton/Welch Residence

Builtin 1903 for Sarah and Alfred Wilton, and
expanded in 1916, the Wilton/Welch
Residence is a very good example of a
vernacular, Edwardian era building. The
simple, L-shaped plan has an overall
restrained appearance that is enriched by ; :
carpenter ornamentation including scroll-cut @ 29 Milton Street

eave brackets and contrasting -
tongue-and-groove in detailing in the front gable and along the eave lines.
The residence was also the home of Albert and Isabella Welch who owned
a farm in the Wellington area, raised animals for the fur trade, and also
opened a feed business in Nanaimo, and later Welch and Welch
Confectionery with his son at the corner of Bastion and Skinner Streets.
During the late 1920s, he served on City Council and was the Police
Commissioner for a time. The property is also significant as the site of
Nanaimo’s largest identified Catalpa Tree, commonly referred to as an
Indian Bean Tree after its prominent seed pods.

Jenkins Residence

Builtin 1924 for David Jenkins, proprietor of D. J.

Jenkins Ltd, Funeral Directors and Embalmers,
the Jenkins Residence is a superior example of a
| late Craftsman bungalow. Its long and low

d form is typically Craftsman but it also features
many distinct design elements including carved
verge boards with unusual upswept ends and a
treatment in the gable ends and verandabh piers in which random sized
pieces of granite were pressed into wet mortar. These elements, and the
immaculate condition of the building, combine to make the Jenkins
Residence an exceptional example.

@ 674 en_tvyrt treet

Wilson Residence

Builtin 1926, the Wilson Residence is an
excellent example of a late Craftsman style
building. The building is finely detailed and has
a notable wrap-around verandah that takes
advantage of its corner location. The residence
is also significant for its association with Charles
Wilson. During the 1930s and 1940s, Wilson was \_4
a prolific local contractor and designer. Wilson exemplifies early Nanaimo
builders. Self-taught builders like Wilson, who had no formal architectural
training, designed the majority of Nanaimo’s early building stock. Among
Wilson’s credits are this residence, the design and construction of the Hall
Block on Commercial Street, the construction of the Eagle’s Hall on Bastion
Street and the Hudson-Essex garage (now offices) at 30 Front Street.
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Ledmgham Residence

Built around 1902, this residence is a very good

| example of a vernacular, transitional style -

| from Late Victorian carpenter ornamentation to
8 Edwardian symmetry and boxiness. The
building displays some unusual features. The

| symmetrical massing is emphasized by twin
projecting front bays on the ground floor that

(15 R
are joined by a continuous hip roof to form a covered porch over the central
front entry. Decorative fish-scale shingling is used in the front gable. The
residence is significant as one of the few surviving historic buildings in this
immediate area that recalls its early identity as a prestigious residential
neighbourhood. Over time, other single family residences in the area were
replaced with apartment blocks, multiple family housing and institutional

buildings.

McCourt Residence
Tall and imposing, the vertical massing of this

projecting front bay has a sloped roof, with
paired brackets at the cornice. The house
survives in fairly intact condition, except for the
enclosure of the corner entry porch, metal clad
roof, and the addition of a concrete block
chimney on the east facade. By 1901 the
property had been acquired from Donald
McLellan by Joseph McCourt, a miner who lived
on Victoria Road, as a rental property.

750 Franklyn Street

Milton Street Residence

Constructed around 1893, this Late Victorian
cottage is one of the oldest buildings on this
street. Its symmetrical massing, central entry
and porch, and flanking bays recall a
vernacular style from the Southern United
Stated sometimes called “Piano Box
Victorian”. Sympathetically rehabilitated, it
adds greatly to the ambience of Milton Street,
which still maintains much of its Victorian
and Edwardian housing stock.

@ 434ilton Street

Leynard Residence

Built for the Leynard family around 1932, the
residence is a very good example of the
English Cottage Style that was very popular in
Nanaimo during the interwar period. Design -
features representative of this style include the | H :
asymmetrical floor plan, steeply pitched gable /
and hip roofs and the early use of stucco
siding. Art Leynard was a long time City
Engineer and author of “The Coal Mines of
Nanaimo”, a popular publication.
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Nanalmo Hospital (now Malaspina Lodge)

i | Built between 1925 and 1942, the Nanaimo
Hospital is a very good example of Classical
Period Revival style architecture. Based on
the architecture of Ancient Greece and Rome,
| Classical Revival was one of the most
| widespread styles in North America from the
/ late 1880s to the early 1900s, especially for
churches and public buildings. The buildings’ Greek Cross form and
minimal ornamentation are typical elements of this style. The building’s
overall austere and institutional appearance, appropriate for the serious
nature of providing medical services, symbolizes tradition and authority.
The Hospital building represents the City’s complex history of medical
services and speaks to the on-going challenge of providing adequate
facilities for an ever-expanding population. The first hospital was opened
in 1877 in a row of miner’s cabins. In 1881, a large new purpose built
hospital was opened on this site. Continued population growth dictated
the construction of this new building in 1925. Construction was delayed
by lack of finances and it was not officially opened until three years later.
The north wing, although part of the original design, was not completed
until 1942 because of funding problems. In 1962, a new hospital was
opened at another site. The Nanaimo Hospital Building has since been
adapted for other uses.
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Freethy Residence

Builtin 1911 for John W. and Edith Freethy,
the residence is a very good example of a
finely detailed Craftsman Bungalow. The
horizontal massing, full front verandabh,
tapered columns and scroll-cut verge boards
are typical features of this style. John Freethy
was a clerk at Spencer’s Store on nearby
Victoria Crescent.

@ 304 KennedyStréet



Circa 1920's, view from middle of 300 block of Machleary Street looking east

Built in 1913, the Woodman Residence is an
exceptional, richly detailed example of
Edwardian era eclectic trends in housing
4 forms. The symmetrical facade and vertical
; & proportions are typically Edwardian while the
25T &8 pattern of sinuous curves in the leaded glass
@ 07 Kennedy Street in the upper windows sash speaks to an Arts
and Crafts influence. The overall impression is of a finely crafted custom
built house, relatively rare in a city composed predominantly of modest
working-class housing. The residence is also significant for its association
with a well known and respected teacher, May Woodman, who lived in
the building from 1913-1971.

Wilkinson Residence

Built in 1913, the Wilkinson Residence is
Nanaimo’s premiere example of the eclectic
design trends of the Edwardian era. The
Craftsman influenced river rock foundation,
Classical style porch columns and Edwardian
era vertical proportions of the building are
evidence of this trend. The building is further
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distinguished by a two-storey high rounded turret on the front facade,
stained glass window panels and sidelights, and a second floor balcony.
The residences’ corner location, height, and mass make it a highly visible
neighbourhood landmark.

Shaw Residence
w : Builtin 1910-11 by George N. Shaw, manager

of International Correspondence Schools, the

! Shaw Residence is a very good example of a

| modest Craftsman style bungalow. Long and

low in form, this simple building features a

few decorative elements typical of the

@ 815 Fitzwilliam Street Craftsman style including a stained glass

panel in the second floor window, triangular brackets under the porch

and double-hung wooden sash windows.

Beattie Residence

Built in 1910 for George Beattie, owner of
Beattie and Hopkins Printers, the Beattie
Residence is a sophisticated and unusual
example of an Edwardian-era Craftsman style
bungalow. The building features many of the
hallmarks of this style including its long and
low proportions, double hung wooden-sash

.k
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windows, front gable roof, inset verandah, squared chamfered columns,
exposed rafter ends and triangular eave brackets. The residence is
significant as an example of the type of superior housing, both in design and
construction, that typifies the Old City neighbourhood.

" Built in 1913 for Francis (Frank) Rowbottom

a who was a baker, the residence is a superior
example of an Edwardian bungalow. This
symmetrical building has many Craftsman
features including triangular eave brackets,
exposed rafter ends on the front dormer and a
large, finely detailed wrap-around verandabh.
The rock wall with stone gateposts and elaborate wrought iron gate, in
addition to the mature landscaping, add to the estate-like ambience of this

property.

Hitchen Residence

Built in 1952 by Arthur Hitchen Jr. for his
widowed mother, Ethel, the Hitchen Residence
is a very good example of early ranch house
design and displays many elements typical of
the style including a long and low profile, rock
trim on the exterior, a low-pitched roof, large
picture windows and deeply overhanging
eaves. Ethel Hitchen was born in Nanaimo in 1896 and was the
granddaughter of one of Nanaimo’s earliest merchants, John Hirst, and the
daughter of merchants Frank and Louisa Hirst Rogers. Ethel was a school
teacher for many years and an active member of St. Andrew’s United Church
and the Business and Professional Women's Club.

Rowbottom Residence

320Machleary Street
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John Johnston Residence
[ ° = Built around 1912 for John Johnston, a local
blacksmith, the residence is a very good
example of a vernacular, Edwardian era
bungalow. Common elements include an open
front verandah inset under a projecting second
N storey front gable, supported by square
@ 407 Machleary Street chamfered columns. Unusual features include
the arches located on the front porch. Johnston'’s two daughters, Lillian and
Isabelle, were teachers in the community for many years. The house was
lived in continuously by members of the Johnston family until 2006.
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Parrot Residence

| Builtin 1916, the Parrot Residence is a very
good example of an Edwardian era bungalow
and displays many elements typical of the
style including a simple, square form,

5 restrained ornamentation, an open front
verandah with square chamfered columns
and a cross-gabled roof.
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411 Machleary Street

Rowley Residence

Built in 1893 for Joseph Rowley, a blacksmith,
this tall late Victorian house displays the
influence of the Italianate style. Scroll-cut
eave brackets decorate the broad cornice
under the roofline. A two storey projecting
front semi-octagonal bay features P i
star-shaped cut outs, and a steeply sloped @ 426Machleary Street
skirting that extends to form a roof over the front entry. Slender turned
columns frame the front door. The front door and the balustrade have
been replaced, and a deck added to the rear of the house, otherwise it
remains in very good condition.

Clements Residence

Built in 1929, the Clements Residence is a
good example of an unusual, vernacular
late-Craftsman style building. While the
simple form, steeply pitched roof and shed
dormer are typical Craftsman elements, the

unusual surface treatment. The residence is
located on sloping topography forming the
dividing line between two significant older City neighbourhoods - the Old
City Neighbourhood to the east and the Harewood neighbourhood to the
west.

St. Peter’s Cemetery

St. Peter’s Cemetery is a rare, tangible link
with Nanaimo’s Roman Catholic heritage and
speaks to the earliest ecclesiastic, social and
spiritual history of Nanaimo. The first
recorded burial took place in 1876, although
the church was established in Nanaimo at 1 et i
least 15 years earlier. The cemetery is the only @ 301 Machleary Street
surviving single denomination graveyard in

Nanaimo. Still in active use, the cemetery is important as a communal,
spiritual space, and as a publicly accessible, outdoor history museum.




